

City Council Building Chattanooga, Tennessee

COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES

August 9, 2016 6:00 PM

CALL TO ORDER

Council Chairman Moses Freeman called the meeting to order. A quorum was present, including Vice Chair Jerry Mitchell and Council members Chris Anderson, Carol Berz, Russell Gilbert, Yusuf Hakeem, Chip Henderson, Larry Grohn, and Ken Smith all present. Deputy City Attorney Wade Hinton and Council Clerk Nicole Gwyn, CMC, were also present.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Councilwoman Berz led the Assembly in the Pledge of Allegiance.

APPROVAL OF LAST MINUTES

On motion of Councilman Anderson and seconded by Councilman Gilbert, the minutes of the last meeting (August 2, 2016) were approved as published.

ORDINANCES - FINAL READING:

2016-070 Southeast Medical Properties, II, LLC Planning Version District No. 4

ORDINANCE #13077

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHATTANOOGA CITY CODE, PART II, CHAPTER 38, ZONING ORDINANCE, SO AS TO REZONE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 7127 IGOU GAP ROAD, MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED HEREIN, FROM R-1 RESIDENTIAL ZONE TO R-4 SPECIAL ZONE, SUBJECT TO CERTAIN CONDITIONS.

Councilman Grohn informed the Council that three (3) new conditions had been worked out with the developer and the neighborhood that would replace the current conditions #5, #6 and #7. The Clerk read the new conditions into the record as follows:

- 5. Along Igou Gap Road there shall be a thirty (30') foot vegetative buffer with an earthen berm varying in height, with a maximum height of six (6') feet and maximum side slopes of 2-1/2:1.
- 5:1. Said earthen berm toe of slope shall begin five (5') off the right of way of Igou Gap Road. Two staggered rows of evergreen shrubs shall be planted at ten (10') feet centers with a

minimum height of five (5') feet at the time of planting and a required minimum mature height of twelve (12') feet. The two rows shall be set eight (8') feet apart.

6. Along the eastern boundary of the property, where abutting R-1 single family zoning, there shall be a City Standard Type B, City of Chattanooga landscape buffer, twenty (20') wide.

Councilman Grohn moved to approve the amendments, seconded by Councilman Smith. The motion carried. **Councilman Grohn moved** to approve the amended ordinance, seconded by Councilman Mitchell. The motion carried. Attorney Hinton informed the Council that the amended ordinance reverts back to first reading because of the changes to the conditions.

ACTION: REVERTS TO FIRST READING

On motion of Councilman Anderson and seconded by Councilwoman Berz,

ORDINANCE #13093

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHATTANOOGA CITY CODE, PART II, CHAPTER 5, ARTICLE III, DIVISION 2, TO ADD A NEW SECTION 5-88, RELATIVE TO THE CONSUMPTION OF ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES AND BEER IN PARKLET CAFES; OPEN CONTAINERS OF ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES AND BEER IN PARKLET CAFES.

The motion carried with Councilman Henderson voting "NO."

ACTION: APPROVED

ORDINANCES – FIRST READING:

2016-089 Thomas Austin Planning Version District No. 1

AGENDA ITEM VI(a):

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHATTANOOGA CITY CODE, PART II, CHAPTER 38, ZONING ORDINANCE, SO AS TO REZONE PROPERTY LOCATED IN THE 3900 BLOCK OF KELLY'S FERRY ROAD, MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED HEREIN, FROM R-1 RESIDENTIAL ZONE, R-4 SPECIAL ZONE, AND M-1 MANUFACTURING ZONE TO R-4 SPECIAL ZONE, SUBJECT TO CERTAIN CONDITIONS.

Councilman Henderson moved to defer one (1) week. He was seconded by Councilman Smith. The motion carried.

ACTION: DEFERRED ONE (1) WEEK

2016-103
Asa Engineering % Allen Jones/
Russell Bean C-O- Executor
Planning Version
District No. 1

AGENDA ITEM VI(b):

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHATTANOOGA CITY CODE, PART II, CHAPTER 38, ZONING ORDINANCE, SO AS TO REZONE PART OF PROPERTY LOCATED AT 1105 MOUNTAIN CREEK ROAD, MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED HEREIN, FROM R-1 RESIDENTIAL ZONE TO R-3 RESIDENTIAL ZONE, SUBJECT TO CERTAIN CONDITIONS.

Councilman Henderson informed the Council that the neighborhood association would like to meet again on this item and **moved** to defer until September 13. He was seconded by Councilman Smith.

ACTION: DEFERRED UNTIL SEPTEMBER 13, 2016

2016-104 Tennessee River Place and James P. Little Planning Version District No. 1

AGENDA ITEM VII(c):

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHATTANOOGA CITY CODE, PART II, CHAPTER 38, ZONING ORDINANCE, SO AS TO REZONE PART OF PROPERTY LOCATED AT 1335 O'GRADY DRIVE, MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED HEREIN, FROM R-1 RESIDENTIAL ZONE TO R-3 RESIDENTIAL ZONE, SUBJECT TO CERTAIN CONDITIONS.

A hearing ensued, with John Bridger (Regional Planning) making a visual presentation on this item. After which, Attorney Hinton read the rules of procedure for speakers addressing the Council. Chairman Freeman then recognized the following Applicant:

• Rebecca Little (Thompson St.) – She discussed her family's efforts since May 2015 regarding this request. She stated that she feels like a victim of hypothetical legislation not yet passed. She stated that her only vehicle for a short-term vacation rental is requesting rezoning and limiting the use of R-3 to short term vacation rental. She also addressed several concerns she had heard from neighbors.

On behalf of the Opposition:

- James Fox (Old Bird Drive) He distributed a list of signatures from neighborhood homeowners who opposed this rezoning. He believes that R-3 zoning would not be conducive to the neighborhood.
- Curtis Buckles (Lookout Valley) His backyard adjoins the Little's property. He voiced opposition because of too many new visitors and strangers in the neighborhood; inability to get acquainted or communicate with renters; and the possibility of increased noise.

o In response to Councilman Smith's question on how the neighborhood voted on this matter, Mr. Curtis responded that the neighborhood was 100-percent against the rezoning and that he had 38 signatures on the petition distributed to the Council. Councilman Smith clarified that he was asking about the number of neighborhood association votes. Councilman Henderson informed the Council that the neighborhood association meeting had 13 members who voted to deny and three (3) who voted in favor.

Rebuttal on behalf of the Applicant:

- Aaron Little (Scenic Waters Lane) He accused Councilman Henderson of coaching Mr.
 Fox on what to say about the neighborhood association. He stated that the number of units
 for the property has been misrepresented by neighbors on Facebook. He stated that he
 does not think the neighborhood knew what they were voting for.
 - O Councilman Henderson refuted coaching Mr. Fox and informed the Council that he had asked Mr. Fox to report on what happened at the neighborhood meeting. He also disclosed publically that his property adjoins the Little's property and, therefore, plans to abstain from making a motion or voting on this matter.

Councilman Gilbert informed Mr. Little that several districts have concerns about short-term vacation rentals. Councilman Smith suggested looking at the approval policy for special exceptions permits. Councilman Hakeem discussed the short term vacation rental that had been approved in his district and the fact that it did not have opposition from the community.

Councilman Hakeem moved to deny, seconded by Councilman Gilbert. Vice Chair Mitchell inquired about the Littles' standing if new short-term vacation rental legislation is passed. Attorney Hinton confirmed that a denial today would not prevent the Littles from applying when new legislation is in place. **The motion carried, with Councilman Anderson voting "NO" and Councilman Henderson abstaining.**

ACTION: DENIED

2016-060

Jack Haylett Branch Acquisition Company, LLC/
Defoor Brothers, LLC/Tommy Thompson/
Winona Sims/Steven Dobbs Family Trust
Planning Version
District No. 4

AGENDA ITEM VI(d):

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHATTANOOGA CITY CODE, PART II, CHAPTER 38, ZONING ORDINANCE, SO AS TO REZONE PROPERTIES LOCATED IN THE 2300 TO 2500 BLOCKS OF GUNBARREL ROAD, 7325 THROUGH 7342 BLOCKS OF MCCUTCHEON ROAD, 2500 BLOCK OF LIFESTYLE WAY, AND 2300 THROUGH 2400 BLOCKS OF ELAM LANE, MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED HEREIN, FROM MXU MIXED USE ZONE TO R-1 RESIDENTIAL ZONE TO C-4 PLANNED COMMERCE CENTER ZONE, SUBJECT TO CERTAIN CONDITIONS.

Due to some legal issues and other issues with RPA and Transportation, **Councilman Grohn moved** to defer to September 13, 2016, seconded by Councilman Gilbert. The motion carried.

ACTION: DEFERRED UNTIL SEPTEMBER 13, 2016

2016-099
Bradley M. Lipsey/Kinsey Probasco Hays, LLC
Medical Development Partners, LLC
Planning Version
District No. 8

On motion of Councilman Hakeem and seconded by Councilman Gilbert,

ORDINANCE #13094

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHATTANOOGA CITY CODE, PART II, CHAPTER 38, ZONING ORDINANCE, SO AS TO REZONE PROPERTIES LOCATED AT 1301 CITICO AVENUE AND 804 NORTH HOLTZCLAW AVENUE, MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED HEREIN, FROM 0-1 OFFICE ZONE TO R-4 SPECIAL ZONE, SUBJECT TO CERTAIN CONDITIONS.

Mr. Bridger gave a brief visual presentation on the site and explained the conditions recommended by the Planning Commission and Staff. Councilman Hakeem informed the Council that there had been no opposition to this rezoning from the neighborhood association or individuals. Mr. Bridger to discuss the proposed parking in the front of the building. There was no Opposition present, so Chairman Freeman recognized the following on behalf of the Applicant:

- **Bradley Lipsey** He invited Mr. Winnick to speak to address the functions and percentages of patients.
- Joe Winnick (Erlanger Health System)

Councilman Gilbert asked about the purpose of facility, who will be served and the percentages of patients served. Mr. Winnick informed the Council that it would be a short-term behavioral health, in-patient and outpatient facility that will employ 200 people (full and part time). In response to Councilman Gilbert's question about the percentages of patients, Mr. Winnick informed the Council that the facility would serve everybody in the community. Mr. Winnick also informed the Council of the partnership with Acadia Health that, he stated, follows the same tenants as Erlanger in serving those who do not otherwise have access to needed services, regardless of their ability to pay. The motion carried, with Councilman Gilbert abstaining from the vote.

ACTION: PASSED ON FIRST READING

<u>2016-105</u> <u>Calvin Ball</u> District No. 9

On motion of Councilman Hakeem and seconded by Councilman Gilbert,

ORDINANCE #13095

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHATTANOOGA CITY CODE, PART II, CHAPTER 38, ZONING ORDINANCE, SO AS TO LIFT CONDITION NO. 2 OF ORDINANCE NO. 12949 OF PREVIOUS CASE NO. 2015-054 FROM PROPERTY LOCATED AT 2442 CHAMBERLAIN AVENUE, MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED HEREIN, SUBJECT TO CERTAIN CONDITIONS.

ACTION: PASSED ON FIRST READING

MR-2016-102 M&M Industries District No. 5

On motion of Councilman Gilbert and seconded by Councilwoman Berz,

ORDINANCE #13096

AN ORDINANCE CLOSING AND ABANDONING A SANITARY SEWER EASEMENT LOCATED AT 6100 ENTERPRISE PARK DRIVE, DETAILED ON THE ATTACHED MAP.

ACTION: PASSED ON FIRST READING

MR-2016-076 Allen Headrick District No. 2

On motion of Vice Chair Mitchell and seconded by Councilman Grohn,

ORDINANCE #13097

AN ORDINANCE CLOSING AND ABANDONING A SANITARY SEWER EASEMENT LOCATED AT 1400 HAMILTON AVENUE, DETAILED ON THE ATTACHED MAP.

ACTION: PASSED ON FIRST READING

MR-2016-080
Asa Engineering and Consulting
District No. 7

On motion of Councilman Anderson and seconded by Councilwoman Berz,

ORDINANCE #13098

AN ORDINANCE CLOSING AND ABANDONING A SANITARY SEWER EASEMENT LOCATED AT 1400 CHESTNUT STREET, DETAILED ON THE ATTACHED MAP.

ACTION: PASSED ON FIRST READING

MR-2016-081
Asa Engineering and Consulting
District No. 7

On motion of Councilman Anderson and seconded by Councilwoman Berz,

ORDINANCE #13099

AN ORDINANCE CLOSING AND ABANDONING A SANITARY SEWER EASEMENT LOCATED AT 4101 JEROME AVENUE, DETAILED ON THE ATTACHED MAP, SUBJECT TO CERTAIN CONDITIONS.

ACTION: PASSED ON FIRST READING

MR-2016-107 Gabe Collier District No. 7

On motion of Councilman Anderson and seconded by Councilwoman Berz,

ORDINANCE #13100

AN ORDINANCE CLOSING AND ABANDONING A PORTION OF THE WESTERN EDGE OF THE RIGHT-OF-WAY OF THE 1400 BLOCK OF SINCLAIR AVENUE TO ALLOW FOR NEW HOME CONSTRUCTION, DETAILED ON THE ATTACHED MAP, SUBJECT TO CERTAIN CONDITIONS.

ACTION: PASSED ON FIRST READING

On motion of Councilman Anderson and seconded by Councilwoman Berz,

ORDINANCE #13101

AN ORDINANCE GRANTING UNTO AMCA, LP A FRANCHISE TO MAINTAIN EXISTING BASEMENT STRUCTURES EXTENDING SIXTEEN (16') FEET ONE (1") INCH INTO THE RIGHT-OF-WAY ALONG BROAD STREET AND MARKET STREET AND EXTENDING TEN (10') FEET NINE (9") INCHES INTO THE RIGHT-OF-WAY ALONG WEST 8TH STREET ADJACENT TO 736 BROAD STREET, AS SHOWN ON MAPS AND DIAGRAMS ATTACHED HERETO AND INCORPORATED HEREIN BY REFERENCE, SUBJECT TO CERTAIN CONDITIONS.

ACTION: PASSED ON FIRST READING

RESOLUTIONS:

On motion of Councilman Anderson and seconded by Councilwoman Berz,

RESOLUTION #28730

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE CITY AUTHORITY SERVICE AGREEMENTS WITH THE CHATTANOOGA DOWNTOWN REDEVELOPMENT CORPORATION; CHATTANOOGA LAND BANK AUTHORITY; HEALTH, EDUCATIONAL AND HOUSING FACILITY BOARD; INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT BOARD; AND SPORTS AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF CHATTANOOGA.

ACTION: ADOPTED

On motion of Councilman Mitchell and seconded by Councilman Smith,

RESOLUTION #28731

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING HAGAMAN CONSTRUCTION COMPANY % BENNETT HAGAMAN TO USE TEMPORARILY THE RIGHT-OF-WAY OF THE ALLEY LOCATED ADJACENT TO 910 AND 912 YOUNG AVENUE FOR SECONDARY ACCESS TO THE PROPERTIES, AS SHOWN ON THE MAPS ATTACHED HERETO AND MADE A PART HEREOF BY REFERENCE, SUBJECT TO CERTAIN CONDITIONS.

ACTION: ADOPTED

On motion of Councilwoman Berz and seconded by Councilman Gilbert,

RESOLUTION #28732

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING GRASSROOTS MIDTOWN % VICTORIA OVERHOLSER TO USE TEMPORARILY THE RIGHT-OF-WAY AT SPECIFIC LOCATIONS ALONG BRAINERD ROAD, LEE HIGHWAY, AND EAST BRAINERD ROAD FOR THE PURPOSE OF INSTALLING POLE BANNERS, AS SHOWN ON THE MAPS ATTACHED HERETO AND MADE A PART HEREOF BY REFERENCE, SUBJECT TO CERTAIN CONDITIONS.

ACTION: ADOPTED

On motion of Councilman Anderson and seconded by Councilman Hakeem,

RESOLUTION #28733

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING PROFESSIONAL SIGN SERVICES % CHAD MOORE ON BEHALF OF PROPERTY OWNERS, JOHN CLARK AND JESSICA WEST, TO USE TEMPORARILY THE RIGHT-OF-WAY LOCATED AT 1301 COWART STREET FOR THE PURPOSE OF INSTALLING A SIGN, AS SHOWN ON THE MAPS ATTACHED HERETO AND MADE A PART HEREOF BY REFERENCE, SUBJECT TO CERTAIN CONDITIONS.

ACTION: ADOPTED

On motion of Councilman Anderson and seconded by Councilman Gilbert,

RESOLUTION #28734

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING BUDDY RATLEY SIGNS % BUDDY RATLEY, ON BEHALF OF PROPERTY OWNER, GINGER R. WEEKS, TO USE TEMPORARILY THE RIGHT-OF-WAY ALONG THE 8TH STREET SIDE OF THE BUILDING ADDRESSED AS 735 BROAD STREET FOR THE PURPOSE OF INSTALLING A SIGN, AS SHOWN ON THE MAPS ATTACHED HERETO AND MADE A PART HEREOF BY REFERENCE, SUBJECT TO CERTAIN CONDITIONS.

ACTION: ADOPTED

On motion of Councilman Anderson and seconded by Councilman Smith,

RESOLUTION #28735

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CAUGHMAN AND CAUGHMAN ARCHITECTS % JAY CAUGHMAN, ON BEHALF OF PROPERTY OWNER, RANDY HERRON, TO USE TEMPORARILY THE RIGHT-OF-WAY LOCATED AT 422 VINE STREET FOR THE PURPOSE OF INSTALLING TWO AWNINGS AND AN EXHAUST VENT, AS SHOWN ON THE MAPS ATTACHED HERETO AND MADE A PART HEREOF BY REFERENCE, SUBJECT TO CERTAIN CONDITIONS.

ACTION: ADOPTED

On motion of Councilman Gilbert and seconded by Councilman Anderson,

RESOLUTION #28736

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING RICK R. WOOD, ON BEHALF OF PROPERTY OWNER, ANDREW PAGE, TO USE TEMPORARILY THE RIGHT-OF-WAY LOCATED ALONG THE ALLEY WAY ON THE NORTH SIDE OF 55 EAST MAIN STREET FOR THE PURPOSE OF INSTALLING A GROUND FLOOR PATIO AND GATE, AS SHOWN ON THE MAPS ATTACHED HERETO AND MADE A PART HEREOF BY REFERENCE, SUBJECT TO CERTAIN CONDITIONS.

ACTION: ADOPTED

On motion of Councilman Anderson and seconded by Councilman Grohn,

RESOLUTION #28737

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ADMINISTRATOR FOR THE DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH AECOM TECHNICAL SERVICES, INC. RELATIVE TO CONTRACT NO. T-16-006-101, FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES ASSOCIATED WITH THE ADVANCED TRANSPORTATION MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS PROJECT, WITH THE CITY'S CONTRIBUTION IN THE AMOUNT OF \$49,287.86, FOR A TOTAL AMOUNT OF \$246,439.28.

ACTION: ADOPTED

On motion of Councilman Henderson and seconded by Councilwoman Berz,

RESOLUTION #28738

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE APPOINTMENTS OF KRISTEN FRENCH AND MARK BROBSTON AS SPECIAL POLICE OFFICERS (UNARMED) FOR THE CHATTANOOGA AREA REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY (CARTA), TO DO SPECIAL DUTY AS PRESCRIBED HEREIN, SUBJECT TO CERTAIN CONDITIONS.

ACTION: ADOPTED

On motion of Councilman Grohn and seconded by Councilman Gilbert,

RESOLUTION #28739

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE WAIVER OF RENTAL FEES FOR THE USE OF THE WARNER PARK POOL ON SATURDAY, SEPTEMBER 10, 2016, FOR THE MCKAMEY ANIMAL SHELTER ANNUAL DOGGIE POOL PARTY, IN THE AMOUNT OF \$350.00.

ACTION: ADOPTED

DEPARTMENTAL REPORTS:

Fire Department

Fire Chief Chris Adams introduced Fire Marshal William Matlock to update the Council on the Fire Marshal's division. He discussed included information on the following:

- "Get Alarm" with State Fire Marshal: 100 for 100 Challenge CFD surpassed the challenge of installing 100 smoke alarms in one day by installing 218 working smoke alarms free of charge in one day.
- Smoke detectors, hand tools and batteries added to tool boxes on all equipment
- July 26, 2016 CFD canvassed the area around 1725 Rubio, where there had been one (1) fire fatality. CFD installed 21 alarms and replaced 11 batteries.
- Smoke Alarm Install on November 5, 2016 (Time and location to be announced)
- Fire Prevention Week from October 9-15, 2016 Will include fire education in all local schools and a poster contest for every grade level.
- FY16 Review in Numbers: 4,917 fire and life-safety inspections; 272 public events; 408 fire and life-safety plan review events.

Councilmen Gilbert expressed thanks on behalf of citizens for the installation of smoke alarm. Smith expressed appreciation for the department's report and commended them for the number of alarms installed in one day. Chairman Freeman expressed thanks and commended the department for their response time in the fire fatality mentioned and also at pool incident recently.

Purchases

David Carmody, Deputy Chief Operating Officer, briefed the Council on the following purchases:

PO 522359 - General Services

Blanket Contract Renewal for Police Interceptor Vehicles, Sedans & SUVs Fleet Management

Lowest/Best Bidder: Brooker Ford

925 Shugart Road Dalton, GA 3072

PO 534257 - General Services

Blanket Contract Renewal for Automotive Parts

Fleet Management

Lowest/Best Bidder: Lee-Smith Inc.

2600 8th Avenue

Chattanooga, TN 37407

PO 535008 - Public Works

Blanket Contract Renewal for Machining, Fabrication & Related Equipment Repairs Waste Resources Division

Lowest/Best Bidder: Valley Mechanical Inc.

608 Śalem Rd. Rossville, GA 30741 Estimated \$2,000,000 Annually

Estimated \$3,000,000 Annually

Estimated \$150,000 Annually

PO 535112 - Public Works

Estimated \$300,000 Annually

Blanket Contract Renewal for Liquid Ferric Chloride

Waste Resources Division

Lowest/Best Bidder: PVS Chemicals Inc.

10900 Harper Avenue Detroit, MI 48213

Councilman Anderson moved to approve, seconded by Councilman Grohn. The motion carried.

ACTION: APPROVED

OTHER BUSINESS:

City Attorney Report

Attorney Hinton informed the Council that a settlement agreement had been reached with Mayse Construction Company that required Council approval and asked the Clerk to read the following:

RESOLUTION #28740

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ADMINISTRATOR FOR THE DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS TO EXECUTE A SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT WITH MAYSE CONSTRUCTION COMPANY, INC., IN ORDER TO COMPROMISE AND SETTLE VARIOUS CLAIMS PENDING BETWEEN THE PARTIES IN CONNECTION WITH THE PHASE 2 ESIP SANITARY SEWER UPGRADE ("PROJECT"), IN THE AMOUNT OF \$750,000.00.

Councilman Hakeem moved to approve, seconded by Vice Chair Mitchell. The motion carried upon roll call vote as follows:

Anderson	NO	Henderson	NO
Berz	YES	Mitchell	YES
Gilbert	YES	Smith	NO
Grohn	NO	Freeman	YES
Hakoom	VES		

ACTION: ADOPTED

RBI World Series

Councilman Gilbert informed the Council that the RBI Senior Boys team competed in the series and came in second place. He commended the team and their coach, Keith Landecker.

COMMITTEE REPORTS:

Audit & I.T. Committee Councilman Grohn (No report)

Budget and Finance Committee Councilwoman Berz (No report)

Economic and Community Development Committee Councilman Anderson (No report)

HR Committee (Human Resources)
Vice Chair Mitchell
(No report)

Planning & Zoning Councilman Hakeem

- The Council has scheduled a public hearing on August 30 regarding the short-term vacation rentals and other items.
- He and Vice Chair Mitchell attended the premiere of a youth-directed video called *Stop The Violence*. He called the video "an expression to change the environment." He would like for the Council to recognize the youth at some point.

Public Safety Committee Councilman Henderson (No report)

Public Works and Transportation Committee Councilman Smith

• The committee will meet on August 16 following the Agenda Session to discuss the policy for body-worn cameras.

Youth and Family Development Committee Councilman Gilbert (No report)

RECOGNITION OF PERSONS WISHING TO ADDRESS COUNCIL (Non-Agenda Items)

Chairman Freeman inquired if there persons in the Assembly wishing to address the Council. Seeing none, this portion of the agenda was closed.

ADJOURNMENT

CLERK OF COUNCIL

CHAIRMAN

On motion of Councilman Anderson, Chairman Freeman adjourned the meeting of the

Chattanooga City Council until Tuesday, Augus16, 2016, at 6:00 p.m.